

Orange Grove Girls Softball League, Inc.
DBA
Gulf Coast Girls Softball Association

BY- LAWS

ARTICLE I.

NAME.

We, the concerned parents of the Orange Grove area have established the Orange Grove Girls Softball League, Inc. / Gulf Coast Girls Softball Association. The short title of this association shall be OGGSL/GCGSA.

The purpose for which the OGGSL/GCGSA is organized are exclusively religious, charitable, stable, literary and educational within the meaning of Section 501 c 3 of the Internal Review Code of 1986 or the corresponding provision of any future US Internal revenue law.

ARTICLE II.

PURPOSE.

The purpose for which this association is formed is to provide recreation opportunities by way of organized sports programs for the children of residents of the Orange Grove and greater Gulf South Region area. This association will seek to instill in the youth of our community ideals of good sportsmanship, honesty, loyalty, integrity, and teamwork, so they may be stronger, happier, and more fulfilled youths who will grow to be wholesome, healthy adults. The OGGSL/GCGSA will schedule, plan, and host athletic, social, and civic events and activities for adults and youth of the community, and supervise and make provisions for competitive athletic events and social functions and activities. The key to success of the OGGSL/GCGSA is voluntary participation by both children and adults.

The Purposes for which the Orange Grove Girl's Softball League, Inc./Gulf Coast Girls Softball Association is organized are exclusively religious, charitable, stable, scientific, literary and educational within the meaning of Section 501 © 3 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, of the corresponding provision of any future US Internal Revenue law.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, this organizations shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on by an organization exempt from federal income tax under Section 501 © 3 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or the corresponding provision of any future US Internal revenue law.

In the event of dissolution, the residual assets of the organization will be turned over to one or more organizations which themselves are exempt as organizations described in Sections 501 © 3 and 170 © 2 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or corresponding sections of any prior or future Internal Revenue Code, of the federal, state, or local government for exclusive public purpose.

ARTICLE III.

SITE OF OPERATION.

The principal operation site of the OGGSL/ GCGSA shall be in the City of Gulfport Harrison County, Mississippi, specifically at Goldin Sports Complex on Prudi Circle. Extension into other areas may be approved as necessary due to unanticipated events which necessitate such action.

ARTICLE IV.

FISCAL YEAR.

The fiscal year of the OGGSL/GCGSA shall be January 1 thru December 31. Any balance in excess of \$20,000 will be placed in a 12-month certificate of deposit.

ARTICLE V.

MEMBERSHIP.

All parents, legal guardians, and adult participants in the softball programs of the OGGSL/GCGSA are members. There is no membership fee and membership is valid commensurate with the fiscal year.

ARTICLE VI.

MEETINGS.

Meetings shall be called by the President as necessary to conduct all business to ensure success of the OGGSL/GCGSA. All meetings are open forums and attendance by all OGGSL/GCGSA members is encouraged. A quorum (50% plus one) of the Board of Directors is necessary to conduct OGGSL/GCGSA business. Robert's Rules of Order shall be the parliamentary authority on all matters not covered by the Constitution and By-Laws.

ARTICLE VII.

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS.

Changes to this Constitution or the By-Laws may be made at any OGGSL/GCGSA meeting attended by 2/3 of the Board of Directors. Recommendations for changes may be submitted by any OGGSL/GCGSA member. Amendments to the Constitution require 2/3 vote of Board members present; By-Laws changes require a majority vote of Board members present.

BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I.

GOVERNING BODY.

The OGGSL/GCGSA shall be governed by a Board of Directors [hereafter referred to as the "Board"] comprised of the following.

President

The president is elected by the general members or the current sitting Board prior to the Fall season on even-numbered years. Term of office shall be four years.

Vice-President

The vice president is elected by the general members or the current sitting Board prior to the Fall season on even-numbered years. Term of office shall be four years.

Treasurer

The treasurer is elected by the general members or the current board prior to the Fall season on even-numbered years. Term of office shall be four years.

Secretary

The secretary is elected by the general membership or the current sitting board prior to the Fall season on even-numbered years. Term of office shall be four years.

Board of Directors Members

Members of this board and special members can be nominated by the general membership or the current board prior to the Fall season and can be elected by either the membership or the current sitting board. Term of office shall be four years.

ARTICLE II.

OFFICERS/DUTIES.

a. President.

- (1) Preside over all Board meetings and Serve as Chairperson of the Board of Directors.
- (2) Assume responsibility for the operation of the OGGSL/GCGSA complying with the Constitution and By-Laws.
- (3) Serve as an ex-officio member of all committees.
- (4) Appoint committees and supervise their activities.
- (5) Ensure the OGGSL/GCGSA adheres to all affiliation and locally prescribed rules.
- (6) Complete Charter application/continuation forms and forward to affiliate headquarters. Conduct all business with affiliate headquarters.
- (7) Manage or provide supervisory oversight for any activities undertaken by the OGGSL/GCGSA not specifically covered in the Constitution or By-Laws. Initiate long term strategic planning.

b. Vice-President. Preside in the absence of the President and carry out duties and assignments designated by the Constitution and By-Laws and/or delegated by the President and serve as Co-Chairperson of the Board of Directors.

c. Secretary. Records the minutes of meetings and maintain an official record of OGGSL/GCGSA activities. Carry out duties and assignments designated by the Constitution and By-Laws and/or delegated by the President and serve as a member of the Board of Directors.

d. Treasurer. Provide oversight for the dispensing of OGGSL/GCGSA funds, write checks, maintain an official accounting of finances, report on the status of league funds, and prepare the budget that is submitted for approval by the board. Carry out duties and assignments designated by the Constitution and/or delegated by the President and serve as a member of the Board of Directors.

e. **Board Members.** Serve as the representative voice for the OGGSL/GCGSA by attending meetings, participating in the adoption of rules and regulations governing the operation of the league, and voting on issues relative to the activities of the league. Carry out duties and assignments designated by the Constitution and/or delegated by the President or the Board of Directors. Board Members can serve as a member of the Board of Directors as requested by the President or current board as listed in Article I.

ARTICLE III.

POWERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

The OGGSL/GCGSA Board of Directors shall have the following powers.

- a. Make and enforce rules and regulation to govern itself on a local basis.
- b. Divide the OGGSL/GCGSA into age-specific leagues in accordance with affiliation guidelines.
- c. Conduct registrations, tryouts, manage player and coach selection process, and provide oversight for player transfers.
- d. Determine the national affiliation which shall impact strategic management of operations.
- e. Solicit contributions, enter into contracts, purchase and own equipment, and take other actions necessary to ensure the comprehensive success of the OGGSL/GCGSA.

ARTICLE IV.

ELECTION/REMOVAL PROCEDURES.

- a. Election Procedures. All board members shall be elected by secret ballot at an open meeting held prior to the Fall Season on even-numbered years. Provision is made for an acceptance of acclamation if a nominee for office is unopposed. Newly elected officers assume responsibility at the close of the meeting during which they were elected. The President is afforded the right to nominate an OGGSL/GCGSA member to fill a vacancy arising between semi-annual election months; nominee must be approved by a 2/3 board vote at a regularly scheduled meeting.
- b. Removal Procedures. Board members elected to serve and represent the best interests of the OGGSL/GCGSA must commit to promoting the agendas of the league as a whole. Participation in meetings, social/civic activities, athletic contests, etc., are mandatory. It is the sole responsibility of each board member to notify the Secretary if meeting attendance is not possible. Three (3) unexcused absences by a board member shall result in a vote of confidence by the board. The vote of confidence shall be by secret

ballot at a regularly scheduled meeting and requires a 2/3 vote of board members present. Following the vote of confidence, the President shall notify the delinquent board member of the desires of the board. The delinquent member shall be provided the opportunity to appear at the next scheduled meeting to address the board. The board shall then vote by secret ballot on removal or continuance. If the delinquent member does not appear before the board in response to the vote of confidence, removal shall be automatic and effective immediately.

c. Resignations. Resignations should be submitted in writing.

d. Filling Vacancies. Vacancies created as a result of resignation, removal, etc., shall be filled by a special election called by the President. An officer or director elected in such a manner will take office immediately.

ARTICLE V.

STANDING COMMITTEES.

The following committees are recommended and can be formed to ensure OGGSL/GCGSA initiatives are accomplished in a timely and efficient manner.

a. Budget/Finance Committee. Chaired by OGGSL Treasurer and shall consist of four additional OGGSL/GCGSA members (to include Board members) recommended by the Treasurer and approved by the Board. Term of office is at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for all monetary management of the OGGSL/GCGSA.

b. Equipment Committee. Chaired by the Equipment Manager and shall consist of two additional OGGSL/GCGSA members (to include Board members) approved by the Board. Term of office is at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for inventory, accountability, operability, and recommendations for purchase of equipment needed to support OGGSL/GCGSA operations.

c. Facility Maintenance Committee. Chair is appointed by the President and shall consist of four additional OGGSL/GCGSA members (to include Board members) approved by the Board. Term of office is at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for ensuring that all facilities [to include, but not limited to fields, adjacent areas, parking areas, and concession area] are maintained in such a manner as to promote an attitude of pride and commitment to the youth of our community.

d. Sponsors Committee. Chair is appointed by the President and shall consist of four additional OGGSL/GCGSA members (to include Board members) approved by the Board. Term of office is at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for organizing and conducting sponsorship drives, negotiating non-binding long-term corporate

sponsorships, and coordinating sponsor involvement in all facets of league and post-season play.

e. Coaches Committee. Chaired by the Vice-President and shall consist of four additional OGGSL/GCGSA members (to include Board members) approved by the Board. Term of office shall be at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for reviewing all coaching applicants and making recommendations to the Board in form of motion. Guidelines for selection of coaches will include clear background check, softball knowledge, seniority, availability, and leadership/guidance skills.

f. Records Committee. Chaired by President and shall consist of one representative from each league participating in league play. Term of office shall be at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for ensuring all applications are properly completed and birth certificates are present and valid. Responsible for ensuring game records (scorebooks) are properly maintained to prevent negative actions towards the OGGSL/ GCGSA regarding All-Star eligibility, and to resolve "innings pitched" issues. Also responsible for securing game results and posting win-loss data for each league in the OGGSL/ GCGSA.

g. Scheduling/Publicity Committee. Chaired by the Vice-President and shall consist of two additional OGGSL/ GCGSA members (to include Board members) approved by the Board. Term of office shall be at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for scheduling and posting practice and game schedules (to include rainouts) for all teams.

h. Umpire Committee. Chaired by the Vice-President and shall consist of two additional OGGSL/GCGSA members (to include Board members) approved by the Board. Term of office shall be at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for assignment of umpires for all league games, the conduct of clinics on rules and mechanics, and ensuring that all umpires know rules (including protest procedures and local deviations). Coordinate with Treasurer to ensure proper payment of umpires.

i. Concession Committee. Chair appointed by President and shall consist of two additional OGGSL/GCGSA members approved by the Board. Term of office shall be at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for overall operation of the concession stand including, but not limited to, purchase of inventory, cleanliness, oversight of funds, coordination with Treasurer, and scheduling of workers.

j. Fall Ball Committee. Chair appointed by President and shall consist of two additional OGGSL/GCGSA members approved by the Board. Term of office shall be at the discretion of the Board. Responsible for overall planning and conduct of all fall ball activities.

k. Protest Committee. Chaired by the Secretary and shall consist of commissioners from each age specific league. This committee will hear and decide all protests in accordance with procedures established by the OGGSL/GCGSA. Information regarding shall be gathered from each coach involved and the umpire of the game at issue.

l. Fundraising/Booster Club Committee. To be published.

ARTICLE VI.

APPOINTED OFFICIALS AND DUTIES.

a. Commissioners. Appointed by the President, approved by the Board; term of office shall be at the discretion of the board. Each age-specific league shall be managed by a commissioner. The commissioner shall be responsible for the day-to-day activities of his/her league, keep the Board apprised of league activities, and serve as a member of the Protest Committee. Commissioners will conduct try-outs and participate in player selection meetings. Neither trades nor transfers are allowed unless deemed necessary to ensure proper team composition guidelines are adhered to. Commissioners must act without favor in dealing with both adult leaders and players. He or she must act from the point of view that the welfare of the players, the league, and the community take precedence over the desires of any single coach. A coach is not allowed to serve as a commissioner in the league he/she coaches in.

b. Equipment Manager. Appointed by the President, approved by the Board; term of office shall be at the discretion of the board. The Equipment Manager will ensure that sufficient player equipment is distributed to each Head Coach following the establishment of team rosters. He/she shall maintain records of inventory and distribution and make requests to the Board in a timely manner to ensure adequate equipment is on hand and available for all league players. Receive equipment from coaches following the season and ensure it is accounted for and properly stored.

c. Beginning in the 2009 season OGGSL/GCGSA will require ALL managers and coaches to take a "Coaches Certification Program: This course is totally self instructional, self placed and is offered online for convenience.

d: Beginning in 2009 season OGGSL/GCGSA will require All coaches, managers and volunteers to complete a background check.

ARTICLE VII.

LEAGUE FORMATION.

For the sake of determining which league a player shall be eligible to participate in, the age of a player will be "as of December 31 of the year in which the player participates". Players may be allowed to move to an "older" age-specific league provided a letter is

submitted by a parent to the board. Children that choose to play "up" must also play up as an all star.

a. T-Ball (4 - 6 YR OLDS). Players not exceeding the age of 6 on December 31 of a given year shall play in this league. There shall be no try-outs for T-Ball; Returning coaches may keep their players from previous season. The remaining players will be randomly divided into teams in a manner that will give each team as even as possible distribution of each age represented in the draft. Specific rules for T-Ball will be published annually and provided to coaches and umpires prior to the beginning of each season.

b. 8U (7-8 YR OLDS). Players not exceeding the age of 8 on December 31 of a given year shall play in this league. Specific rules for 8U will be published annually and provided to coaches and umpires prior to the beginning of each season.

c. 10U (9 - 10 YR OLDS). Players not exceeding 10 years of age on December 31 of a given year shall play in this league. Specific rules for 10U will be published annually and provided to coaches and umpires prior to the beginning of each season.

d. 12U (11 - 12 YR OLDS). Players not exceeding 12 years of age on December 31 of a given year shall play in this league. Specific rules for 12U will be published annually and provided to coaches and umpires prior to the beginning of each season.

e. 14U YR OLD. Players not exceeding 12 years of age on December 31 of a given year shall play in this league. Specific rules for 12U will be published annually and provided to coaches and umpires prior to the beginning of each season.

f. 16U YR OLDS. Players not exceeding 16 years of age on December 31 of a given year shall play in this league. Specific rules for 16U will be published annually and provided to coaches and umpires prior to the beginning of each season.

g. 18U YR OLDS. Players not exceeding 18 years of age on December 31 of a given year shall play in this league. Specific rules for 18U will be published annually and provided to coaches and umpires prior to the beginning of each season.

ARTICLE VIII.

FREEZES.

The child (or children) of the Head Coach will automatically be on that coach's team. If the Head Coach obtains a sponsor, that team gets one (1) freeze and is allowed another freeze for an assistant coach. A coach must obtain parental permission to freeze a child. Any child returning to the draft (for any reason) cannot be taken as a freeze.

ARTICLE IX.

TRY-OUTS/DRAFTS.

Siblings shall not be separated. If a player is selected by way of draft, freeze, or hat pick, his or her sibling(s) must be taken as that team's last selection of the draft.

a. Try-Outs. All leagues (excluding T-Ball) shall conduct try-outs following registration. Try-outs will afford players the opportunity to display level of ability and coaches the opportunity to identify potential players to be placed on team roster. Try-outs will consist of throwing, fielding, and hitting. Each player shall be provided the same number of opportunities in each event. Players that are not selected as a freeze and do not participate in try-outs, will be assigned to a team via a "hat pick".

b. Drafts. Following try-outs, a draft meeting will be conducted to establish team rosters. The draft will proceed in the established sequence until all players have been selected. Teams with a like number of players will establish draft sequence by way of a lottery conducted by the league commissioner. This method is established to create parity within the league.

ARTICLE X.

TEAM COMPOSITION.

Directed by Rules and Regulations of official national chartered group and will be strictly adhered to.

ARTICLE XI.

CONDUCT.

a. There shall be no arguing in any capacity between umpires, coaches, player, and/or fans on or off the field. If a coach or player is ejected by an umpire for any reason, the umpire shall inform a member of the board immediately. The player/coach that is ejected must sit out the next game. The player must be present for this game. The coach is NOT to be present for this game. If an umpire ejects a coach or player a second time during the same season; they are subject to suspension for the remainder of the season pending review and vote by the board.

b. There shall be no fighting, cursing, of use of obscene language or gestures by any coach, player, or fan. The consequences shall be immediate expulsion from the premises. If a coach, player, or fan is removed a second time during the same season, they shall be suspended for the remainder of the season.

ARTICLE XII.

PROTESTS.

- a. No protests are allowed in T-Ball or 8U.
- b. No protests are allowed for judgment calls made by umpires.
- c. The coach must file notice that the game is being played under protest with the Umpire immediately at the time of the disputed decision and before the next pitched ball to a batter or the next play.
- d. The protest fee is \$50.00 made payable to OGGSL/ GCGSA and presented at the time a protest is made. The fee is refunded only if the protest is won.
- e. A written report setting forth all the facts of the protest must be filed with the OGGSL/GCGSA President within 48 hours of the protest.
- f. The OGGSL/GCGSA President shall refer the protest to the Protest Committee (ARTICLE IV k) within 48 hours of receipt, and a decision shall be rendered by the Protest Committee to the President within 48 hours. The final decision of the protest rests with the Protest Committee.

ARTICLE XIII.

GENERAL PLAYING RULES.

- a. All OGGSL/GCGSA games will have a time limit as specified in paragraph VI.
- b. Games ending the time limit in a tie, shall be entered in the score book as a tie.
- c. All roster players must play at least 2 defensive innings of each game. Expiration of time preventing a coach from meeting the full extent of this rule will not result in a coach or team being penalized.
- d. All players on the roster and present will bat each time through the line-up during regular season games
- e. Rainouts will be rescheduled by the OGGSL/GCGSA (if necessary).
- f. Cancellation and/or changing of any game will not be allowed.

ARTICLE XIX.

ALL-STAR SELECTION PROCESS.

The all-star season provides a "post season" experience at a higher level of competition for those qualified and selected through an objective process. This experience is an earned one that encompasses not just advanced skills for the age group, but a well-rounded ability to play the game. Additionally, participants must have character that

exhibits sportsmanship during games and parallels the opportunity of representing our community in other communities.

Number(s) of teams [by age] that will participate in All-Star play.

(1) T-Ball (4-6). Up to Two (2) teams.

(2) 8U (7-8). Up to Two (2) teams.

(3) 10U Minor (9-10). The league can have two divisions with one (1) 9 year old All-Star team and one (1) 10 year old All-Star team from each division.

(4) 12U Major (11-12). The league can have two divisions with one (1) 11 year old All-Star team and one (1) 12 year old All-Star team from each division.

(5) 14U Year Old (13-14). Up to Two (2) teams.

(6) 16U Year Old (15-16). Up to Two (2) teams.

(7) 18U Year Old (17-18). Up to Two (2) teams.

ALL-STAR COACH SELECTION:

Two Step Peer and Board:

1. Win/loss record of regular season is irrelevant.
2. Voting will include the managers and assistant coaches of the division coached in, so that it is a peer selection. Managers or coaches can vote for themselves.
3. Those interested in managing an all-star team must submit in writing their desire to do so on or about the 10th of April. This can be accomplished by giving it to the Commissioner any board member.
4. Voting for the manager (if more than one applicant) will be by ballot process and conducted in the month of April. This gives the elected manager scouting and evaluation time in addition to the all-star tryout day.
5. The final selection of all-star manager after the voting is counted will be approved by a board vote.
6. Manager must, in advance, be committed to the entire timeframe of post-season play (within reason).
7. Effective with the 2009 season, no person can manage or coach a tournament team unless the coaching accreditation from Babe Ruth Baseball/Cal Ripken has been completed, and the said coach is a current registered coach in OGGSL/GCGSA.

Who:

Our selection process should be such that we elect a representative of our league and community that will represent well and the aforementioned in tournament play, both locally and out of town.

This person needs to have demonstrated good baseball/softball knowledge in order to put forth a best effort approach on strategy within the expectations of tournament play, i.e. understand substitutions, player strengths, pitching rules and rotations, and basic strategy of the game. This person must be organized and communicate expectations to both parents and players, clearly and consistently throughout the experience.

Prospective manager should be good with kids and parents as witnessed and supported by peers.

This person, most of all, needs to at all times demonstrate leadership, poise and a demeanor worthy of the charge to guide young girls not only in the game of baseball/softball, but in the life lessons they are sure to encounter in the all-star experience. This includes behavior on and off the field while in the community at large during this role. Outbursts of anger, demeaning comments, or a lack of perspective regarding the most important thing -- our children-- will be cause for immediate dismissal. This process, should it be necessary, will commence with repeated complaints by parents, opposing coaches, or direct observations by board members. The grievances will be reviewed and voted on by the board for quick resolve in an expeditious manner.

Method of selecting All-Star Players:

Any player in the respective age group that signs up for GCGSA/OGGSL is eligible, subject to Cal Ripken/Babe Ruth rules. A player must complete 10-14 regular season games, or 50% of games due specifically to injury to be eligible. This is not an entitlement program: just because your child was on an all-star team in previous years does not guarantee him/her a spot in successive years. Our league recognizes that although the decision of who to select is difficult at best, kids' abilities change year to year, while at the same time trying to put the best possible team on the field to compete on behalf of our league. Coaching availability and player numbers permitting (12 players per team is our goal), it is possible more than one team per age division will be fielded for tournament play. It is also possible that a certain age group will not be represented due to coaching or player restrictions.

SELECTION PROCESS**Phase 1 - Tryout invitation list**

Our league is made up of volunteer coaches where some have basic knowledge of the game while others have intimate familiarity. That being the case, these are the folks who see the players on their teams and the other players in the league on a regular basis. During the course of the regular season play and prior to the all-star tryout day, the manager of each team in each division will submit names of players they believe should get an opportunity to try out for all-stars. The manager will submit names not only from their own team, but names of kids in the same division of whom, by observation, they believe is a candidate to try out. The names of children submitted in this phase are the kids who will be invited to try out only, and it is not an implied selection of the final team. Remember that typical criteria used to develop the tryout list would include: if your child is still developing basic skills or struggling in the regular season games in key areas like throwing, catching, hitting, and fielding, they are not ready for tournament baseball.

During this time, the managers or coaches of the respective divisions will then get together to discuss the invitation list, and go over their respective rosters in identifying any child who was perhaps missed in the first submissions.

Once the choices are finalized by the coaches, these names will become the formal invitation list on the pre-assigned day. The managers will then be responsible to notify the kids on their team that have made the tryout list as to when and what time tryout day is.

Phase 2 - Expectations and commitments

Once the tryout day arrives, the first order of business is to present the "known and expected" tournaments the team will be playing along with all-star team expectations that will be handed out to both the parents and children who are candidates prior to commencing tryouts. We will publish the list of anticipated tournaments as soon as it is available, all the while being subject to change. If at the time of tryouts an invited participant cannot commit to the tournament schedule as known at that time in its entirety, that individual will be asked to decline participation in the tryouts. It is important for parents to know that their time will be required in the post-season for things such as concessions, travel coordination, scoring, potential fundraising, and admissions for tournament play.

Post-season baseball/softball is fun, intense, and a lot is asked of players and family in regards to time and commitment. It is our goal to select players through an objective and public process that will best represent their particular age group.

Phase 3

Once tryouts begin, the children will be evaluated in several basic baseball skills along with their peers. They will have multiple exposures to infield, outfield, and hitting. During this process, they will be evaluated by the managers and/or coaches who coached in their division during regular season. The evaluators will be using time-tested grading criteria to help in their assessments. At the end of tryouts, each manager will submit to the elected All-Star Manager their input of the top 12-14 names they believe should be considered for the final team. Once tryouts are complete, the all-star manager will, in private, review the data and make his determinations. Subsequent to these decisions, the manager will, by his appointment, select two assistant coaches, which must be further approved by the board. The only protected player through the tryout process is the elected all-star manager's child. The final list will be posted at the fields by the President of the Board.

ALL-STAR FINANCING

T-Ball and 8U Leagues.

OGGSL/GCGSA will pay the entry fee for each team to play in the OGGSL/GCGSA tournament plus two (2) other League Sanctioned tournaments in the local area. Any other tournament the All-Star teams play in must be approved by the board due to insurance purposes. The coach and team are responsible for all expenses incurred for that tournament.

All other OGGSL/GCGSA All-Star Teams.

Per char GCGSA/OGGSL mandate, each team must go thru the district tournament route unless OGGSL/hosts an age specific state tournament. If a team does not win the right to proceed past district, OGGSL/ GCGSA will pay the entry fee for a local tournament (if one exists). For teams who proceed beyond district to state, regional, and beyond, OGGSL/ GCGSA will pay entry fees and coordinate fund-raising efforts to defray costs incurred by the team.

Adopted for the 2010 League Season:

President – Alfred C. Sexton



Board Seal